
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

March 2
nd

 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2-REPORTS 

Karen Kilby, VDOT 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB W  Minutes of February 9

th
, 2011 Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB XYZ Minutes of February 16
th

, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB A  Conterra Contract Amendment – Manny Rodriguez, Information Technology Director 

 

    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB B  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 

     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

   

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB C  Information Technology Projects - Manny Rodriguez, Information Technology Director 

TAB D  Budget Supplement for Renovations to Health Department – Garland Nuckols, Facilities Director  

TAB E Request to include the Fork Union School Building in the Fluvanna County School Board Facilities Study  

– Gena Keller, School Superintendent  

TAB F  Approval Contract DJG for the design and Construction Administration of the Fork Union Firehouse –  

 John Robins, Public Works Director 

TAB G  Award of the Construction Contract for the renovation of the old library at Carysbrook – John Robins,  

   Public Works Director 

TAB H  Confirmation of Local Emergency Declaration – Garland Nuckols, Facilities Director & John Robins,  

   Public Works Director 

 

  9-OLD BUSINESS 

 

10-NEW BUSINESS 

   

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  None Scheduled 

 

5:00 – 6:00 PM 

 
 13-DINNER BREAK 

 

 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

6:00 PM 
 

14–BUDGET WORK SESSION – AGENCY PRESENTATIONS 

 Each speaker has been allotted ten (10) minutes to present their agency information followed by a  

 five (5) minute question and answer period 

 6:00 – 6:10 JAUNT/Donna Shaunesey 

 6:15 – 6:25 TJ Soil & Water/Rob Parrish 

 6:30 – 6:40 JABA/Cheryl Cooper 

6:45 – 6:55 CHIP/Judy Smith 

7:00 – 7:10 StreamWatch/John Murphy 

 7:15 – 7:25 Sexual Assault Resource Agency/Margaret Mikkelson 

 7:30 – 7:40 TJPED; CV Small Business Development Center; Piedmont Workforce Network 

   Speaker/Michael Harvey 

 7:45 – 7:55 Fluvanna Social Services/Susan Muir 

8:00 – 8:10 Health Department/Dr. Lillian Peake 

 8:15 – 8:25 Piedmont Housing Alliance/Shelley Murphy 

 8:30 – 8:40 MACAA/Bertha Armstrong 

  

16-ADJOURN 

 

  

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



 

 

MOTION: I move the work session meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board 

of Supervisors for Wednesday, February 9
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  MARCH 2
nd

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors work session 

meeting minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 9
th

 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Gooch called the FY12 Budget work session of February 9

th
 2011 to order at 7:00 p.m. 

in the Circuit Courtroom, Fluvanna Courts Building, Palmyra, Virginia. 

 

Chairman Gooch began the meeting by reviewing the agenda briefly and introducing the 

presenter for the night, Ms. Hoover.  

 

PRESENTATION 

Ms. Hoover began the PowerPoint presentation on the County’s proposed revenues and 

expenditures for FY12.  The slides began with housekeeping which stated the changes that had 

occurred since the last meeting on 2/2/11.  The Lake Water Rescue vehicle was reduced from 

$125 to $25 due to a subsequent conversation with Mr. Scott Carpenter, Lake Fire Chief, the 

vehicle will be financed therefore only requiring the 1
st
 year allocation of the total debt.   

 

Mr. Chesser asked if the vehicle that was requested during last week’s presentation by the F&R 

was in addition to the Water Rescue vehicle and has anyone evaluated whether or not there is a 

true need for the vehicle.  According to the budget request the vehicle Mr. Chesser is referring to 

is an additional vehicle.  (The vehicle was requested in conjunction with a request for paid 

contract medics so provide transportation to and from rescue sites.) 

 

Ms. Hoover returned to the presentation and proceeded with updating the board members on the 

recent legislature changes in the General Assembly.  She then proceeded to discuss the County’s 

top 5 local revenues.  Mrs. Booker inquired about Personal Property tax when the slide was 

presented and asked if Mr. Scudder was proposing an increase in this tax for the FY12 budget.  

He stated it is an option, a . ¢ increase nets $88k. Mrs. Booker also stated she had received a 

memorandum from a former Commissioner of Revenue who indicated this is a tax the county 

should consider increasing.   

Mr. Weaver mentioned he remembers hearing about tax on Natural Gas.  He asked if staff could 

find out if this is still a possibility.  Staff researched this tax and found the County missed the 



 

 

window of opportunity to implement such a tax.  The tax has to be implemented at the same time 

the natural gas is initially introduced to the County.  

 

Attention returned to the presentation.  While reviewing the state revenue funding changes, Ms. 

Hoover stated that Social Services had alerted her they are indeed anticipating a $48k reduction 

in administrative service funding.  (This is a change from when the slides were prepared.)  

Schools have stated they anticipate at least a $1.3 to $1.4 million dollar reduction in state 

funding.   

 

Moving forward in the presentation to Alternative Revenue sources, after presenting the data on 

BPOL from the 1997 report commissioned by the BOS, Mrs. Booker spoke up and stated she 

was ready to take action now.  She pointed out the fact that research was done back in 1997 and 

found these to be viable resources and staff is once again presenting those same findings as 

viable. 

 

Mr. Scudder interjected the conversation to add another potential revenue source, Land Use 

value which could be considered and changed next year during the reassessment.  The purpose 

for doing this along with implementing BPOL and Meals and Lodging taxes would be to spread 

out the tax burden and relieve the pressure on real estate.  BPOL would require an ordinance 

whereas Meals and Lodging tax would require a referendum.   

 

Mr. Gooch then polled the other 3 board members asking if they were ready to take action.  Staff 

was directed to:  

1) Follow-up with the Registrar to find out what would be required to have the meals and 

lodging tax placed on the ballot for referendum.  

2) Prepare a recommendation, structure and timeframe for implementing BPOL and Meals 

and Lodging Tax 

3) Prepare a cost for marketing the implementation 

4) Prepare a proposal for how to incorporate the Chamber of Commerce, EDC and EDA in 

helping endorse the implementation. 

 

Attention turned back to the presentation and Ms. Hoover moved forward with Expenditures.  

Increases and Decreases within departments were displayed on the slides.   

 

Mrs. Booker questioned the increase in the BOS training budget.  Mr. Scudder responded stating 

he is proposing this increase as an opportunity for new and seasoned board members to take 

advantage of several training opportunities throughout the year.  To both represent their locality 

and stay educated. 

 

Mr. Chesser expressed his concerns regarding the IT department and the fact that we almost lost 

our IT director recently.  He stated ‘we need to consider adding another person’.  Mrs. Booker 

agreed and stated we are adding additional duties by consolidating the ADP equipment into IT 

w/o adding staff.  Mr. Scudder replied stating we are starting the transition to capture accurate 

costs and determine the need for an additional person.   

Mrs. Lenherr, Treasurer, asked if she could speak.  She expressed concern with her part-time and 

postage lines being decreased.  She pointed out that additional revenues are being explored 



 

 

which will require the Treasurer’s Office to administer.  She also brought up once a year billing 

for taxes and stated that she has spoken with another locality who is experiencing difficulty with 

collections and complaints from customers as a result of changing to once a year billing.   

Mrs. Booker asked about the Bonus Pay for the Sheriff’s department.  Ms. Besecker responded 

stating this is an increase in the funding that was transitioned to the Sheriff’s department from 

Non-departmental a few years ago.  It was originally setup as an incentive plan in an effort to 

reduce turnover.  Mr. Chesser stated he thought there was something before the legislature 

regarding Bonus Pay for Law Enforcement.  Staff agreed to research this and report back.  Upon 

research staff found there is no such bill before the legislature.  (There was a bill being 

considered to reinstate the Sheriff’s office state funding for each locality.) 

 

Ms. Hoover concluded the presentation at approximately 8:15 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Gooch asked if anyone wanted to discuss the budget or ask any questions.  Mr. Chesser 

responded stating ‘we have the 5 year forecast meeting next week’.  Mr. Scudder added that the 

5 year plan will impact the budget planning process.  

 

Mr. Chesser then posed the question of transitioning to electronic data or iPads for board 

materials, other board members agreed.  Mr. Rodriguez spoke briefly about a test period.  He 

would purchase a test pad and allowing each member use it for one board meeting week and then 

they as a group could decide if this is a transition they would like to make in the near future. 

 

Mr. Gooch then asked if there were any further questions or discussion.  All answered ‘No’.  

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 8:30 p.m. Mr. Weaver moved to adjourn the work session and 

Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 4-0. AYES: 

Booker, Chesser, Gooch and Weaver. NAYS: None.  ABSENT:  Kenney and 

Fairchild 

 

 

  

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, February 16
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  MARCH 2
nd

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors work session 

meeting minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 16
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 1 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 16th, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

John Robins, Public Works Director 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the regular meeting of February 16th, 2011 to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Ipads instead of Board Packets – reviewed with the Board the convenience and cost savings 

to the county if we used Ipads to create the board packets electronically.  Mr. Rodriguez 

demonstrated how it would work. 

  Roundabout for Rt 15 & Rt 53 – interviewed three candidates and have chosen McCormick 

Taylor as the developer. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

The following citizen addressed the Board: 

 Jerry Patchen, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to the 5-year financial 

forecast.  Would like the Board to seriously consider a moratorium on CIP spending, and 

impose on ourselves a referendum for any big ticket spending. 

 Minor Eager, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to the 5-year financial 

forecast.  Requested the Board take a careful look at the reassessment, and cut the budget this 

year. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to the budget. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in reference to the 5 year 

financial forecast, and would like the Board to consider the Financial Chapter in the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 Carolyn Carden, Columbia District – requested the Board consider who elected them and 

speak in their interest.  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 16
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 2 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

  

MOTION: 

  Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 

 Minutes of January 19th, 2011 

 Minutes of February 2nd , 2011 

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2, Article 7 of the Fluvanna County Code, Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-

3, Concerning the Adoption and Use of the County’s Official Seal” 

Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, addressed the Board regarding this item. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

After some discussion of the history of the County Seal and the purpose of this amendment, the 

following motion was made: 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to adopt the amendment to the ordinance entitled “An Ordinance 

to Amend the Fluvanna County Code by the Addition, in Chapter 2, of an Article 7, 

Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-3, Concerning the Adoption and Use of the County’s Official 

Seal”.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

None 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Resolution to VPSA for Available Refund Savings 

Ms. Renee Hoover, Director of Finance, addressed the Board regarding this item. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to adopt the attached resolution for the County to claim a 

refunding savings of $12,620.02 from VPSA, and authorize the County Administrator 

to execute any documents necessary for a refunding savings from VPSA, as reviewed 

by the County Attorney and Bond Counsel.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion 

carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Fairchild, Chesser, Booker and 

Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

Pet Sheltering Grant 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, addressed the Board regarding this opportunity to apply for 

a grant for emergency pet sheltering supplies.  This grant would require the County to partnership 

with Charlottesville/Albemarle. 

MOTION: 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 16
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 3 

Mr. Weaver moved that the Board of Supervisors approve Fluvanna County Animal 

Response Team, to apply for a Pet Sheltering Grant with Charlottesville/Albemarle 

Emergency management, for emergency pet sheltering to develop regional equipment 

reserves.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Gooch, Weaver, Fairchild, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

Kents Store Firehouse Construction Project Update 

Mr. John Robins, Public Works Director, reviewed with the Board the progress of the Kents Store 

Firehouse along with a request to update the budget difference on this project.  Mr. Robins explained 

what caused the difference. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to supplement the construction budget for the Kents Store 

firehouse Project, by moving $94,035.73 from the capital reserve account, 302 94153 

3175, to the construction contract expense line for the Kents Store Firehouse, known 

as account 302 94145 3176.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote 

of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Fairchild, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  

None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

5 Year Financial Forecast  

Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, introduced Mr. Steve Jacobs of Robinson, Farmer, Cox 

Associates, who presented to the Board a Financial Forecast for the period of FY2011 – FY2016.  

The forecast presented is based on historical trends and future requirements, the potential results of 

operations for the forecast period.  This report was prepared for the County of Fluvanna, for the 

purpose of providing some insights into the potential intermediate term effects of planned general 

government operations, capital projects and anticipated new debt service requirements relating to 

alternate levels of capital project financing, and should not be used for any other purpose.   

Discussion: After the presentation, the Board discussed what their options would be.  Mr. Kenney 

stated the Board needs to decide whether they are looking at a sustainable rate, or year by year.  Ms. 

Booker asked staff to provide them with some different scenarios that would help guide their 

thinking.  Chairman Gooch would like to know if they went with a three-year sustainable rate “where 

would the money go; how much would be put in savings?”  Mr. Weaver requested some background 

information on the school salaries and comparison to other counties.  There are some hard decisions 

to be made. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

The Board asked what the time frame is for the 911 Telecommunications compliance. Mr. Weaver 

requested staff to give them a timeline on the completion of this compliance. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Keith Smith, Columbia District, addressed the board in reference to supporting the 

Envoy of Fork Union project. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public comments. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 16
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 4 

CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 

At 9:32 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 

into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code of 

Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing legal matters.  Mr. Kenney 

seconded.  The motion carried by a vote of 4-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, 

Booker, Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None  

 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 11:04 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the Fluvanna 

County Board of Supervisors, convene again in open session. Mr. Kenney seconded.  

The motion carried by a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, 

Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None 

 

MOTION: 

At 11:04 p.m. the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors following a closed meeting held Wednesday, February 16th, 2011 on 

motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Kenney and carried by the following vote of 

6-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  

None.   ABSENT: None 

 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters 

lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the 

Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, and (ii) only such public business matters as 

were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 

discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 

EXTEND MEETING  

MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved to ratify the Board’s actions, taken in closed session, to extend 

the meeting for not more than 30 minutes after 11:00pm.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The 

motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, 

Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 11:06 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, February 

16th, 2011.  Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: 

None     

 

 

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, February 16
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 5 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE 

AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 7, SECTIONS 2-7-2 AND 2-7-3, 

CONCERNING THE USE OF THE COUNTY’S OFFICIAL SEAL 

 

 Be it ordained by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Virginia Code 

Section 15.2-1402, that the County Code be, and is hereby, amended, in Chapter 2, Article 7, 

Sections 2-7-2 and 2-7-3, as follows: 

 
Article 7.  Official County Seal 

 

Sec 2-7-2.   Seal Deemed Property of the County; Unauthorized Use Prohibited. 

 

The seal of Fluvanna County shall be deemed the property of the County; and no persons 

shall exhibit, display, or in any manner utilize the seal or any facsimile or representation of the 

seal of Fluvanna County for nongovernmental purposes unless such use is specifically authorized 

by law. 

  

Sec. 2-7-3.   Violation and Penalty. 

 

Any person violating the provisions of this section shall be punished by a fine of not 

more than $100, or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days or both. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors to authorize the County Administrator to 

sign the amendment labeled “Amendment to Wide Area Network Telecommunications 

Service Agreement”.  

 
 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  March 2, 2011 

 

SUBJECT: Conterra Contract Amendment 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine  

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:   This amendment sets the monthly charges for network 

services at $1,000 from $1,399. 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None.  

 

DISCUSSION:  This amendment which renews the contract between Conterra Ultra 

Broadband, LLC and the County of Fluvanna will lock the monthly payment at $1000 for 

three years. This contract amendment has been reviewed by the County Attorney’s Office 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  On May 7
th

 2008 Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

awarded the contract entitled “Wide Area Network Telecommunications Service 

Agreement” to Conterra for the purpose of providing network connectivity between the 

High School, Community Center and Administration buildings. 

 

Staff: Manny Rodriguez, IT Director 

 

Attachments: Contract Amendment and Original Contract 

 

************************************ 

County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
 

 

 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator  



































































































































































MOTION: I move to authorize additional funding, not to exceed $11,000, from 

Personal Contingency for the purpose of completing ongoing Information Technology 

projects.  

 
 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  March 2, 2011 

 

SUBJECT: Information Technology Projects 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

TIMING: Routine  

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: Uncompleted IT projects are impacting the IT Directors ability 

to dedicate sufficient time to the Municipal software conversion. Valuable training and test 

time is being lost on trouble shooting and “band-aiding” known issues because there is not 

enough time to fix them permanently. 

  

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None.  

 

DISCUSSION:  If the following projects could be completed in a timely manner, it would 

allow a smother transition to the Municipal Software system change: 

 

Migration of DNS Server 

Migration of Virus Protection 

Migration of Exchange server to online service 

Active Directory migration and overhaul 

 

It’s been estimated that the above projects would not require more than 120 vendor hrs. 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None. 

 

 

 

Staff: Manny Rodriguez, IT Director 

Attachment: none

 

For County Administrator’s Use Only: 

Comments: 
 

 

 

County Administrator  



MOTION: I move to the Board of Supervisors approve a supplemental appropriation 

of $6,263.77 to the Alterations to County Building budget line within the Facilities 

budget to reflect funds received to cover the cost of renovations to the Health 

Department.  The following budget lines would increase by the stated amount - 3-100-

018030-0003 and Expenditure line 4-100-043200-9904. 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  March 2, 2011 
 

SUBJECT: Budget Supplement for Renovations to Health Department 

 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval of the supplemental appropriation as 

stated above. 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The FY 2011 Budget will increase by $6,263.77 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: none 

 

DISCUSSION: Funds have been received from the Health Department to cover the 

costs of the renovations, therefore no county funds are required. 

 

Staff: Crystal Besecker, Finance 

 

Copy: Garland Nuckols, Facilities 

 

Attachments:       

 

 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 

 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

County Administrator’s Signature 



MOTION:   I move to include the former Fork Union School, currently used by parks and 

recreation, in the facilities study associated with the Domino Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



FLUVANNA COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

14455 JAMES MADISON HIGHWAY 

PALMYRA, VIRGINIA 22963 

 

OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 

(434) 589 8208   Fax:  (434) 589 2248 

 

March 2, 2011 

 

To:  Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

From:  Gena C. Keller, Superintendent 

Re:  Facilities Study Associated with the Domino Plan 

 

 

Thank you for your consideration of the following request: 

 

The Fluvanna County School Board requests the Board of Supervisors give permission to 
include the former Fork Union School, currently used by Parks and Recreation, in the facilities 
study associated with the Domino Plan.   

 

We believe it would provide for a more comprehensive review as we work to articulate a plan 
for efficient use of all school facilities and other sites, as applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MOTION: I move to accept the DJG Engineers Architects and Planners proposal (as 
amended) for the design and construction administration for the Fork 
Union Firehouse to be constructed next to the existing Community Center 
on Route 15 for an amount of $212,290 plus reimbursable expenses (not to 
exceed $25,000) and authorize the County Administrator to execute a 
contract after approval by the County Attorney. 

 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS           2 March 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the contract with DJG for the design and 

construction administration of the Fork Union Firehouse. 
 
ISSUE: Decide whether to approve contract with DJG of 

Williamsburg for the design and construction 
administration of the Fork Union Firehouse located next to 
the existing community center in Fork Union. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The review committee recommends approval of the 

contract. 
 
TIMING: Routine. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The cost for the basic architectural design work including 

assistance with the bidding and award process along with 
the construction phase of the project will cost $159,760.  
This basic architectural work is estimated to be about 9% of 
the estimated total construction cost for this project of 
$1,760,000.   This is a very typical fee for architects which 
usually range from 7 to 10% on standard building designs. 

 
 The grant requirements for this project include a 

geothermal heating and cooling system along with 
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 
certification.  These grant requirements will result in 
additional design work and will add an additional fee of 
$8280 and $44,250 respectively.   

 
In addition, an amount of $25,000 is planned to be set aside 
for reimbursable expenses such as geotechnical 
investigations of the building site and roadway along with 
added survey and storm water work. 

 
 This will result in a total contract amount of $212,290 with 

a reimbursable expense amount of $25,000.      
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION: The Request for Proposal was advertised for the 

Architectural and Engineering Services on December 5, 
2010 in the Daily Progress.  A mandatory pre-proposal 
meeting was held on December 15, 2010.  Written 
proposals were received on January 10, 2011.  The 
following firms submitted proposals:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Moore and Goldman Architects Lynchburg, Virginia 
DJG, Inc. Williamsburg, Virginia 
Bignell, Watkins, Hasser Architects Vienna, Virginia 

Dagliesh, Gilpin, Paxton Architects 
Charlottesville, 
Virginia 

Engineering Design Associates Richmond, Virginia 
Reynolds Architects, Inc Blacksburg, Virginia 

Heyward Boyd Architects, PC 
Charlottesville, 
Virginia 

 
 
 
 

A review and interview committee was formed to review 
the proposals short list them and interview the short-listed 
firms.  This committee consisted of Mike Brent, Fire Chief 
for Fluvanna County, Pat Groot, Grant Administrator, Bill 
Ford, Project Manager, and John Robins, Director of Public 
Works.  From the original seven firms, four were selected 
for interviews.  The selection was done using the ranking 
criteria presented in the request for proposal.  The four 
firms selected for interviews included: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Moore and Goldman Architects Lynchburg, Virginia 
DJG, Inc. Williamsburg, Virginia 
Bignall Watkins Hasser Architects Vienna, Virginia 

Dagliesh Gilpin Paxton Architects 
Charlottesville, 
Virginia 

 
The review and interview committee arrived at a 
unanimous decision on the selection of the top firm with 
which to negotiate a contract.  This firm was DJG of 
Williamsburg, Virginia.  Their experience with firehouses, 
the work history of their team, along with their overall 
preparation for the presentation was clearly demonstrated 
in the interview.  Several rounds of negotiations were held 
with DJG before the scope and fee structure that is attached 
to this agenda item was developed.   
 
 

 

  Page 2 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 
Staff: John Robins, Director of Public Works 
 
Attachments: Letter from DJG dated February 4, 2011 with proposed scope and fees. 
 
******************************* 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Page 3 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  Page 4 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 

 
 

  Page 5 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  Page 6 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 2 March 2011 
DJG, Inc. – Fork Union Firehouse A/E Contract 
 
 

 

  Page 7 



MOTION: CORRECTED: I move to award the construction contract of the 
renovation work of the old library at Carysbrook to Fife, Inc. for the 
amount not to exceed $290,800 and authorize the County Administrator to 
execute the contract after approval by the County Attorney.  Additionally, 
I direct staff to transfer funds from the General Fund unreserved fund 
balance in the amount of $126,680 to the Human Services Building 
account 4-302-094110-3175. 

 
 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS             2 March 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Award of the Construction Contract for the renovation of 

the old library at Carysbrook to the apparent low bidder, 
Fife, Inc. 

 
ISSUE: Decision to award the Construction Contract for the 

renovation of the old library at Carysbrook to the apparent 
low bidder, Fife, Inc.  Additionally, a decision on whether 
to install the geothermal system will need to be made at the 
same time. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends award of the contract to Fife, Inc. with 

the inclusion of the geothermal Heating, ventilation and air 
conditioning system for the first floor added to the project 
(alternative number two).  

 
TIMING: Routine. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The current budget for this project is set at $235,000.  This 

budget was set for the renovation work on the first floor 
below the Social Services office, and was intended to be 
complimented by the performance contracting project.  The 
performance contracting work was to be funded through a 
separate budget and was to pay for the HVAC work and 
lighting fixture improvements.  With the loss of the 
performance contracting budget, this project budget of 
$235,000 will be hard pressed to cover all of the work that 
will be necessary to completely renovate this space for use 
by the Department of Social Services.    Therefore, it will 
be necessary to augment this budget to complete this 
project. The proposed project budget is expected to be as 
follows if alternative number two is selected (geothermal 
for the first floor): 

 
 
 
 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 02 March 2011 
Construction Contract for the Renovation of the Carysbrook Facility for Social Services 
 
 

  Page 2 

 
  

Item Amount 
Renovation of Interior of First Floor of Social Services  $    175,800  
Wiring for computers and phones along with telephone system 
upgrade  $      22,000  
Furniture for waiting rooms and added offices  $      16,000  
Geothermal system (alternative number two)  $    115,000  
Subtotal  $    328,800  
Contingency (10%)  $      32,880  
 Total Project Budget   $    361,680  

 
  The apparent low bidder for the project is Fife, Inc., from 

Goochland, Virginia. Their base bid was $175,000.  Their 
alternative bid to replace the existing cooling tower 
(alternative number one) was $73,000.  Their bid to install 
a geothermal HVAC system for the first floor (the floor 
being renovated) was $115,000 (alternative number two).  
Their bid to install a geothermal HVAC system for both 
floors was $188,000 (alternative number three).  The 
bidding information is shown below in the discussion. 

 
The budget will need to be augmented by $126,680 (The 
proposed budget amount of $361,680 minus the current 
allocated amount of $235,000) by transferring funds from 
the general fund balance to the capital improvement fund 
Human Services Building contract services expenditure 
line. 

 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None 
 
DISCUSSION: This project was advertising on December 19, 2010 in the 

Daily Progress and the plan rooms in the region.  A pre-bid 
conference was held on January 6, 2011 where 
approximately 12 individuals attended.  The bids were 
received on February 1, 2011 and read aloud in the Historic 
Courthouse.  The following table shows the results: 

 

Contractor Base Bid Alternative 1 Alternative 2 Alternative 3 
Fife Incorporated  $    175,800   $      73,000   $      115,000   $    188,000  
Kenbridge  $    379,000   $      55,000   $       45,000   None  
B&T Builders  $    407,000   $      52,961   $      198,086   $    344,073  
CMS  $    461,600   $      63,000   $      302,800   $    688,200  
Martin Horn  $    340,000   $      55,000   $      200,000   $    360,000  
Coleman Adams  $    254,665   $      53,000   $      266,500   $    595,000  
Jamerson  $    375,000   $      51,000   $      171,000   $    329,000  



Agenda for BOS Meeting 02 March 2011 
Construction Contract for the Renovation of the Carysbrook Facility for Social Services 
 
 

  Page 3 

 
 
The apparent low bidder is Fife, Inc.  Their base bid was 
$175,000.  Their alternative bid to replace the existing 
cooling tower (alternative number one) was $73,000.  Their 
bid to install a geothermal HVAC system for the first floor 
(the floor being renovated) was $115,000 (alternative 
number two).  Their bid to install a geothermal HVAC 
system for both floors was $188,000 (alternative number 
three). 
 
The base bid includes the work inside of the building such 
as the installation of walls, doors, ceiling, flooring, 
electrical work, etc.  The alternatives that were requested 
included replacement of the existing cooling tower 
(alternative number one), or the installation of a geothermal 
system for the renovated floor only (alternative number 
two) or the installation of a geothermal system for both 
floors (alternative number three).   
 
The County HVAC maintenance contractor, Cii, has stated 
for several years that the cooling tower will need to 
undergo extensive repairs and upgrades.  This cooling 
tower will likely come under more stress with the higher 
cooling load from the offices that will be built on the first 
floor.  Therefore, the cooling tower will need to be replaced 
or the cooling load for the first floor will need to be carried 
by a geothermal system.  It is recommended that a 
geothermal system by installed for the first floor at this 
time (alternative number two) and that the reduced loading 
on the cooling tower will allow it to serve for another five 
to ten years.  This will allow the County to save and plan 
for the renovation of the second floor and match the 
installation of a new geothermal system to the proposed 
uses of the second floor.  That is why alternative number 
three, the geothermal for both floors, was not 
recommended. 
 
Based on the current average of $2.85/square foot/year for 
energy costs for this building along with a net effected 
square footage of 6000 square feet and a projected 
operating cost of $1.15/square foot/year for a geothermal 
system, the savings from the use of a geothermal system for 
the first floor is expected to break even in about 11 years.  
This is an acceptable window for simple payback for this 
type of system.  Simple payback does not included cost 



Agenda for BOS Meeting 02 March 2011 
Construction Contract for the Renovation of the Carysbrook Facility for Social Services 
 
 

  Page 4 

savings du to the longer life expectancies of the geothermal 
system and will likely reduce the payback period. 

 
 
Staff: John Robins, Director of Public Works 
 
******************************* 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



1  
 

MOTION: I move to confirm the decision to declare a local emergency on Saturday, 

February 19, 2011, in response to a significant fire.  

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  March 2, 2011 

 

SUBJECT: Confirmation of Local Emergency Declaration 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: One bobcat and three dozers were requested to be deployed by the 

Fire Chief in order to cut fire breaks and remove potential fuel sources.  These were obtained 

from three local contractors: Backhoe Bob, Daniel Lenherr, and Shellbeck Excavation.  These 

three contractors sent their equipment within one hour of the request and ran them through the 

night and early morning as needed.  Their presence on site meant the difference between saving 

at least one house and a cabin and loosing them to the brushfire.  These contractors will require 

payment.  It estimated that the fees incurred during the emergency will total less than $8000. 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action is consistent with the requirements of the Code of 

Virginia Emergency Services and Disaster Law. 

Code of Virginia § 44-146.21. Declaration of local emergency.  

(a) A local emergency may be declared by the local director of emergency management with 

the consent of the governing body of the political subdivision. In the event the governing 

body cannot convene due to the disaster or other exigent circumstances, the director, or in 

his absence, the deputy director, or in the absence of both the director and deputy director, 

any member of the governing body may declare the existence of a local emergency, subject 

to confirmation by the governing body at its next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special 

meeting within fourteen days of the declaration, whichever occurs first. The governing 

body, when in its judgment all emergency actions have been taken, shall take appropriate 

action to end the declared emergency.  

The full text of this section of the Code is attached for your reference. 

 

DISCUSSION: On Saturday, February 19, 2011, Garland Nuckols contacted Supervisor 

Gooch in his capacity as the Director of Emergency Services, and gave him a briefing on the 

local emergency response situation which included the need for use of local contractors to 

provide heavy equipment to cut fire breaks.  Mr. Gooch declared a local emergency.  The Code 

of Virginia requires that such action be followed with confirmation of such action by the full 

Board within 14 days.   

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: The last local emergency declaration was in response to a 

significant winter storm event, February 5, 2010 

 

Staff:  Garland Nuckols, Facilities Director 

John Robins, Public Works Director 



2  
 

 

Attachments: Code of Virginia § 44-146.21. Declaration of local emergency.  

 

 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 

 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator  



3  
 

Code of Virginia § 44-146.21. Declaration of local emergency.  

(a) A local emergency may be declared by the local director of emergency management with the 

consent of the governing body of the political subdivision. In the event the governing body 

cannot convene due to the disaster or other exigent circumstances, the director, or in his absence, 

the deputy director, or in the absence of both the director and deputy director, any member of the 

governing body may declare the existence of a local emergency, subject to confirmation by the 

governing body at its next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special meeting within fourteen 

days of the declaration, whichever occurs first. The governing body, when in its judgment all 

emergency actions have been taken, shall take appropriate action to end the declared emergency.  

(b) A declaration of a local emergency as defined in § 44-146.16 shall activate the local 

Emergency Operations Plan and authorize the furnishing of aid and assistance thereunder.  

(c) [Repealed.]  

(c1) Whenever a local emergency has been declared, the director of emergency management of 

each political subdivision or any member of the governing body in the absence of the director, if 

so authorized by the governing body, may control, restrict, allocate or regulate the use, sale, 

production and distribution of food, fuel, clothing and other commodities, materials, goods, 

services and resource systems which fall only within the boundaries of that jurisdiction and 

which do not impact systems affecting adjoining or other political subdivisions, enter into 

contracts and incur obligations necessary to combat such threatened or actual disaster, protect the 

health and safety of persons and property and provide emergency assistance to the victims of 

such disaster, and proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures and formalities 

prescribed by law (except mandatory constitutional requirements) pertaining to the performance 

of public work, entering into contracts, incurring of obligations, employment of temporary 

workers, rental of equipment, purchase of supplies and materials, and other expenditures of 

public funds, provided such funds in excess of appropriations in the current approved budget, 

unobligated, are available. Whenever the Governor has declared a state of emergency, each 

political subdivision affected may, under the supervision and control of the Governor or his 

designated representative, enter into contracts and incur obligations necessary to combat such 

threatened or actual disaster beyond the capabilities of local government, protect the health and 

safety of persons and property and provide emergency assistance to the victims of such disaster. 

In exercising the powers vested under this section, under the supervision and control of the 

Governor, the political subdivision may proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures 

and formalities prescribed by law pertaining to public work, entering into contracts, incurring of 

obligations, employment of temporary workers, rental of equipment, purchase of supplies and 

materials, levying of taxes, and appropriation and expenditure of public funds.  

(d) No interjurisdictional agency or official thereof may declare a local emergency. However, an 

interjurisdictional agency of emergency management shall provide aid and services to the 

affected political subdivision authorizing such assistance in accordance with the agreement as a 

result of a local or state declaration.  

(e) None of the provisions of this chapter shall apply to the Emergency Disaster Relief provided 

by the American Red Cross or other relief agency solely concerned with the provision of service 

at no cost to the citizens of the Commonwealth.  

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+44-146.16


4  
 

(1973, c. 260; 1974, c. 4; 1975, c. 11; 1976, c. 594; 1986, c. 24; 1990, c. 945; 1994, c. 75; 2000, 

c. 309.)  

 

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?941+ful+CHAP0075
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?001+ful+CHAP0309

	Agenda 03-02-2011.pdf
	Work Session Minutes Feb 9, 2011
	Minutes Feb 16, 2011
	Conterra Contract Amendment
	Accounts Payable
	Information Technology Project
	Budget Supplemen for Renovations to Health Department
	Request to include Fork Union School in Facility Study
	Agenda DJG contract 03 02 11 (2).pdf
	MOTION: I move to accept the DJG Engineers Architects and Planners proposal (as amended) for the design and construction administration for the Fork Union Firehouse to be constructed next to the existing Community Center on Route 15 for an amount of $212,290 plus reimbursable expenses (not to exceed $25,000) and authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract after approval by the County Attorney.
	AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS           2 March 2011

	Construction Contract for old library at Carysbrook
	Confirmationof Local Emergency Declaration




